LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY

MINUTES

of the proceedings of the Meeting of the Council of the Borough held at 7.00 pm on 16 October 2023

Present:

The Worshipful the Mayor Councillor Mike Botting

The Deputy Mayor Councillor Keith Onslow

Councillors

Jeremy Adams	Christine Harris	Chloe-Jane Ross
Jonathan Andrews	Colin Hitchins	Shaun Slator
Jessica Arnold	Alisa Igoe	Colin Smith
Kathy Bance MBE	Julie Ireland	Diane Smith
Yvonne Bear	Mike Jack	Mark Smith
Nicholas Bennett J.P.	Simon Jeal	Alison Stammers
Kim Botting FRSA	David Jefferys	Melanie Stevens
Mark Brock	Charles Joel	Harry Stranger
David Cartwright QFSM	Kevin Kennedy-Brooks	Ryan Thomson
Graeme Casey	Josh King	Michael Tickner
Will Connolly	Kate Lymer	Pauline Tunnicliffe
Robert Evans	Tony Owen	Thomas Turrell
Kira Gabbert	Christopher Marlow	Sam Webber
Adam Jude Grant	Ruth McGregor	Rebecca Wiffen
Hannah Gray	Tony McPartlan	
Dr Sunil Gupta FRCP	Angela Page	
FRCPath	Chris Price	

Before the meeting started the Mayor led Members in a period of silence in memory of Honorary Freeman Richard Lane OBE FCA and Councillor Andrew Lee, who had died since the last meeting of the Council.

The meeting was opened with prayers.

In the Chair The Mayor Councillor Mike Botting

23 Apologies for absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Felicity Bainbridge, Aisha Cuthbert, Sophie Dunbar, Simon Fawthrop, Jonathan Laidlaw, Alexa Michael and Will Rowlands. Apologies for lateness were received from Cllr Ryan Thomson.

Councillors Fawthrop, Michael and Rowlands joined the meeting online.

24 Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 17 July 2023

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 17th July 2023 be confirmed as a correct record.

26 Questions

Two questions had been received from members of the public for oral reply. The questions, with the answers given, are set out in <u>Appendix A</u> to these minutes.

Seven questions had been received from members of the public for written reply. The questions, with the answers given, are set out in <u>Appendix B</u> to these minutes.

Sixteen questions had been received from members of the Council for oral reply. The questions, with the replies given, are set out in Appendix C to these minutes.

Four questions had been received from members of the Council for written reply. The questions, with the answers given, are set out in <u>Appendix D</u> to these minutes.

To consider any statements that may be made by the Leader of the Council, Portfolio Holders or Chairmen of Committees.

The Leader of the Council, Councillor Colin Smith, made a statement following the recent deaths of Honorary Freeman Richard Lane OBE, FCA and Councillor Andrew Lee.

Richard Lane was a long-time resident of the borough with an impressive professional career in accountancy and a wide-ranging contribution to the education, health, business and voluntary sectors. While doing all of this, he suffered from type 1 diabetes and underwent pioneering transplant treatment in 2005. He was chairman of Diabetes UK between 2008 and 2015, after which he continued to be an ambassador for the charity. He received national

recognition with the award of an OBE in 1998, while the borough had granted him its highest honour, the Freedom of the Borough, in 2004. Few people had made such a valuable contribution to the borough.

Councillor Andrew Lee had died while in office at just 66 years on 5th October. He had begun his career in the hard world of Lewisham politics and served as an agent for many years and at Conservative Central Office. His long-held ambition was to serve as an elected representative and he had finally achieved this in May 2022, being elected for Hayes and Coney Hall. His wife Gill had asked that he be remembered as a great motivator, for his sense of humour and for his ability to get things done.

Councillors Jeal, Webber, Michael and Bennett added their thoughts and condolences.

28 Budget Monitoring 2023/24 Report CSD23123

A motion to (i) agree that a sum of £1.8m be drawn down from the 2023/24 contingency as detailed in paragraph 3.2.2 of the report to the Executive and (ii) agree that a sum of £4.25m be transferred to the capital programme as detailed in paragraph 3.2.15 of the report to the Executive was moved by Cllr Colin Smith, seconded by Cllr Christopher Marlow and **CARRIED**.

29 Capital Programme Monitoring - Quarter 1, 2023/24 Report CSD23124

A motion to amend the capital programme by agreeing (i) an increase of a total of £2,656k in relation to Disabled Facilities Grant (£2,443k original award plus £213k supplementary award) and (ii) an additional £4,250k to be added to the Accommodation Capital Programme to be funded as follows - £2,000k of funding from the 2023/24 central contingency and £2,250k from the growth fund reserve, was moved by Cllr Christopher Marlow and seconded by Cllr Yvonne Bear and **CARRIED**.

30 Local Pension Board Annual Report Report CSD23130

A motion to receive and note the 2023 Annual Report of the Local Pension Board was moved by Cllr Keith Onslow, seconded by Cllr Kira Gabbert and **CARRIED**.

31 Local Pension Board - Appointment of Board Member Report CSD23119

A motion to appoint David Kellond as an Employer Representative to the Local Pension Board for the balance of the four-year term of office commencing 17 July 2023 was moved by Cllr Keith Onslow, seconded by Cllr Kira Gabbert and **CARRIED.**

To consider Motions of which notice has been given.

(A) Criminal Damage and Vandalism

The following motion was moved by Councillor Simon Jeal and seconded by Councillor Angela Page:

"Bromley Council unequivocally condemns acts of criminal damage and vandalism. We will continue to work with the Metropolitan Police, seeking to ensure all such crimes are investigated and the criminal perpetrators prosecuted."

On being put to the vote, the motion was **CARRIED**.

(B) Local Government Funding

The following motion was moved by Councillor Jeremy Adams and seconded by Councillor Tony McPartlan:

"Bromley Council and local authorities across the United Kingdom have been facing severe financial challenges due to years of cuts in government funding, with several councils including Woking, Thurrock and Birmingham having to issue S114 notices as they are effectively bankrupt. Bromley Council faces significant funding challenges with the prospect of a £29 million deficit by 2026.

Uncertainty over the future of government funding for local authorities is hampering their ability to plan and allocate resources effectively over the medium term. The proposed Fair Funding Review, developed in 2018 and aimed at redistributing resources more fairly among local authorities, has been delayed until April 2025 at the earliest.

This Council therefore calls on the government to provide an intermediate funding solution in time for financial year 2024-25, comprising:

- Additional funding to local authorities to address acute funding pressures.
- A multi-year settlement to move away from the current year-to-year approach that is leaving councils less able to plan for the future.

This Council further calls on all Members of Parliament representing Bromley constituencies to support this request for additional funding for local government by actively advocating for it in Parliament."

An amendment was moved by Councillor Colins Smith and seconded by Councillor Christopher Marlow for the motion to read –

"Bromley Council and other Local Authorities across the United Kingdom are facing severe financial challenge, due to years of reduced Central Government funding, by successive Governments of all political persuasions,

with several Councils including Woking, Thurrock, Croydon, Slough and Birmingham having to issue S114 Notices as they are now effectively bankrupt.

Bromley Council itself faces significant funding challenges with the prospect of a £36.2m deficit by 2026-2027.

Uncertainty over the future of Government funding for local authorities is hampering Local Government's ability to plan and allocate resources effectively over the medium term.

The proposed Fair Funding Review, developed in 2018 and aimed at redistributing resources more fairly among local authorities, has been delayed until April 2025 at the earliest.

The Council therefore calls on the Government again to provide an intermediate funding solution in time for the financial year 2024-25 comprising:

- Additional funding to Local Authorities to address acute funding pressures.
- A multi-year settlement to move away from the current year-to-year approach that is leaving Councils less able to plan for the future.

This Council further calls on all Members of Parliament representing Bromley constituencies to continue to lobby for additional funding for Local Government by actively advocating for it in Parliament and to bring forward the Fair Funding Review."

On being put to the vote the amendment was CARRIED.

The motion as amended was put to the vote and **CARRIED**.

(C) Public Toilets

The following motion was moved by Councillor Will Connolly and seconded by Councillor Chloe-Jane Ross:

"When public toilets owned and managed by Bromley Council were closed, the Council implemented the Community Toilet Scheme that saw numerous businesses across the borough sign up to offer residents and visitors toilet facilities without needing to make a purchase. Since the COVID-19 pandemic the number of businesses signed-up to the scheme has fallen dramatically. In addition, the standard of public toilets in some of the borough's parks has fallen.

A 2019 report from the Royal Society of Public Health found that one-in-five experience the 'loo leash' – leaving the house much less often than they would like due to a lack of public or available toilets. Bromley Council does not want this for our residents or visitors.

Council notes:

- That clean and safe publicly accessible toilets are critical in encouraging residents and visitors to get out and about in our borough.
- The lack of high-standard publicly accessible toilets prevents some adults and children from leaving the house as often or for as long as they would like to.
- This can stop people visiting our towns, high streets, shopping parades and outdoor spaces, it will cause social isolation for some.
- Age UK London reports that some people reduce the amount they drink before going to some places, and for older residents and many with impairments this can lead to dehydration and serious health consequences.
- The community toilet scheme in towns, and toilets in our parks and green spaces, make these places accessible to everyone.

Therefore, Council calls for the Executive:

- To develop a Publicly Accessible Toilet Strategy, with a designated Officer or Team responsible for its delivery, that will increase the number of Community Toilet venues and improve toilet provision in parks and green spaces.
- To launch a public information awareness campaign on publicly accessible toilets across the borough, including a directory on the Council website.
- To work with Councillors, residents' groups and other stakeholders to review the quality and accessibility of community and parks toilets, and identify opportunities for expanding the borough's Publicly Accessible Toilet network."

On being put to the vote, the motion was LOST.

The Mayor's announcements and communications.

The Mayor thanked Members who had booked tickets for the Ball at The Warren on 21st October and reminded them about the charity dinner at the Tamasha Restaurant on 28th November.

The Mayor announced the following events –

- The Civic Christmas Carol Concert on Sunday 17th December at All Saints Church, Bark Hart Road, Orpington.
- A Sunday Lunch at The Warren on 21st January 2024 money raised to be donated to the Rotary Club of Bromley to add to their funds for supporting Ukraine.
- The annual Mayor's Quiz on Friday 23rd February 2024.
- Dinner at the East India Club on 11th April 2024.

The Meeting ended at 8.55 pm

Chairman